
 
 
 

 
 
 

      
   8 December 2020 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Friday, 11 December 2020 

beginning at 
11:30 am 

in 

Teams Microsoft 

 
TO: Councillors Irish, Clarke, Bicknell, Campbell, Grajewski, Gale, Neubauer, 

Roberts-Jones, Riddoch and Banks 
 County Councillors Thornton 

  
  
  

 
 
Staff Contact: Louise Austin, Case Management Officer, Email: 

louise.austin@eastleigh.gov.uk  

   

 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 3 - 4) 
 
3. Election of Chair      
  
 The Chairpersonship of the Joint Management Committee alternates annually 

between the two authorities. For the year 2020/2021 the Chairperson should be 
appointed from the County Council members of the Committee. 

  
4. Election of Vice-Chair      
  
 The Vice-Chairpersonship alternates annually between the two authorities. For the 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

1



year 2020/2021 the Vice-Chairperson should be appointed from the Borough 
Council members of the committee. 

  
5. Curators's Report    (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
6. Curator's Finance Report    (Pages 13 - 14) 
 
7. Options Appraisal Update    (Pages 15 - 26)  
  
 The date of the next meeting will be on the 25th of February 2021. 
  
8. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 

2



EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday 27 February 2020  (11:30 am – 12:35 pm) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council – Councillor Irish 
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillor Clarke 
 
Present – Councillor Reynolds, Emma Banks, Community Manager 
Hampshire Cultural Trust, Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager, Jean Roberts-
Jones, One Community  

 
Apologies for absence: none recorded 

 
 

2. MINUTES 
 

RESOLVED –  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2019 were agreed as a 
correct record 
 
 

3. CURATOR’S REPORT 
 

Emma Banks, the Community Manager representing the Hampshire Cultural 
Trust, presented a report on activities at or relating to Eastleigh Museum 
which covered the period from June 2019 to January 2020. 
 
Discussions were held regarding: 
 
(a) how to collect and process visitor data through surveys and postcodes 

from visitors. 
 
(b) the possibility of moving the Grotto from the museum to The Point – this 

was ongoing and being dealt with by Guy Riddoch 
 
(c) contacting Councillor Peter Chegwin at Gosport Borough Council to 

facilitate with marketing of events like ‘All That Jazz’ 
 
(d) use of funds from South West Railway (being released April 2012) to 

refurbish or potentially relocate the museum  
 
(e) skylight set to be replaced in March 2020 
 
(f) awarded £34200 from Lottery funding to put into a project that focused on 

the industrial past of Eastleigh and would involve Project Partners of 
Young People, The Bridge, EBC and One Community 

3

Agenda Item 2



 
(g) a possible name change was discussed as the word ‘museum’ creates a 

narrow impression of the services and activities provided  
 

 
4. FINANCE REPORT 

 
Consideration was given to the Financial Report presented by Emma Banks 
from Hampshire Cultural Trust, which provided an overview of the Museum’s 
performance during Quarter 1 to 3 against the 2019/20 budget. 

 
 
A requested review of the format was given to include an overview of staff 
delivery and monitoring to ensure staff levels were accurate and contributions 
were aligned with services provided. 
 

 
 

5. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

It was agreed that the next meeting would take place on 23 July 2020 at 
Bursledon Windmill and commence at 10.30am in place of the scheduled date 
of 24 July 2020. 

4



1 
 

  
 AGENDA ITEM NO. x 

  

Committee: EASTLEIGH MUSEUM 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: Friday 11 DECEMBER 

Title of Report: COMMUNITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

Author: EMMA BANKS  

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  
 
1.  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Museum 
 

1.1 Museum Service Delivery 
 

Visitor figures for 2019/20 overall were down on the 2018/19 figures. However, we did see 

growth in November and January owing to popular events and exhibitions. Namely the 

Santa’s Grotto, Community Christmas Tree Exhibition and the modern art exhibition 

Wonderland.  

The financial year was cut short by the Covid-19 pandemic. In mid-March 2020 the site 

was closed. During lockdown One Community team member, Naomi Stock ensured 

regular Health & Safety checks and essential maintenance we carried out.  

Repair work was completed by HCC on the skylight in the museum in June 2020, bringing 

much more natural light into the rear of the building and ensuring that the skylight is now 

watertight.  

Prior to reopening again in August 2020 the Community Manager carried out a Covid-19 
risk assessment for the site. A number of measures were implemented including limiting 
numbers of people on site, a suite of informational signage installed, hand sanitiser 
stations installed and face coverings issued to team members. All One Community staff 
and volunteer museum team members attended a ‘Return to the Workplace’ training 
session led by the Community Manager outlining the new measures in place. 
 
Following the training the site was opened to the public on 1st August 2020.  
 
The site then closed again due to the second lockdown in November and reopened on 

Friday 4th December.  

Looking forwards we continue to have a diverse programme of exhibitions planned which 

will be supplemented with events and activities where appropriate and Covid secure.  

 
 

 
 
 
 

Report on activities at or relating to Eastleigh Museum 
Covering period February 2020-November 2020 

5

Agenda Item 5



2 
 

 
 
 
1.2 Visitor Figures 
 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 
2009 – 
2010  

2179 1864 1521 2574 2693 2046 2401 1714 1300 3087 3598 3236 28,213 

 
2010 – 
2011 

2372 1567 1780 2493 3205 2091 2349 1881 1151 1236 2109 1759 24,041 

 
2011 – 
2012 

1713 1408 1516 2022 2322 1805 1542 1351 1297 1140 1550 1321 18,987 

 
2012 – 
2013 

923 163 1153 1131 1640 1213 1153 2018 962 1094 1576 
 

1236 
 

14,252 

 
2013 – 
2014 

1470 1523 1279 1405 2461 1571 1910 1788 1139 1538 1692 1738 19,514 

2014 – 
2015  

1926 3052 1561 1961 1465 1501 1470 1382 850 905 1188 1078 18,339 

2015-
2016 

1655 1435 1431 1674 1434 1248 1746 1876 1310 1032 1208 1122 17,171 

2016-
2017 

1367 1236 1807 1331 1520 1232 1241 1641 966 796 1295 1097 16,006 

2017-
2018 

1204 1490 1265 3094 1551 1508 1399 2151 1303 1048 1354 1262 18,629 

2018 – 
2019 

1193 1029 1194 1303 1742 1596 1031 1477 1124 808 1102 1113 14,608 

2019-
2020 

955 761 1179 951 1440 1202 757 1614 1051 861 1072 635 12,248 

2020-
2021 

Closed Closed Closed Closed 294 491 423 175      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
2.  Hosting Special Temporary Exhibitions and Family Events 
 
‘Wonderland’ January 11th 2020-February 22nd 2020 
 
The Wonderland exhibition featured contemporary artworks from four local artists. It 
included paintings, surreal constructions and found sounds as a conduit for the artists to 
explore environments and to invite the viewer in. 
 
 
 

 
Figure 1 Wonderland Exhibition Flier 

 
‘All That Jazz’ – 29th February-25 April 2020 (extended until 5 September 2020) 
 
Eastleigh Museum hosted an exhibition telling the story of jazz and its impact in the local 
area, particularly in the post-war period. 

The exhibition covered how jazz contributed not just to the development of popular music, 
but also had an impact on the look of everyday objects from ceramics to textiles, fashion to 
interior design. We'll also be telling stories of local jazz legends such as Nat Gonella, as 
well as the local clubs that did so much to promote a sound that gave its name to the Jazz 
Age. 

The exhibition was halted by the Covid-19 lockdown in March 2020 so was extended until 
5 September 2020. 

 
‘Life Through The Lens’ – 12 September 2020-14 November 2020 
 
This exhibition invited visitors to immerse themselves in over 100 years of work, rest and 
play in the Eastleigh borough through black and white photographs.  

7



4 
 

This selection of photographs was selected from the Hampshire Cultural Trust 
photographic collection, transporting us back in time to the heyday of the railway in 
Eastleigh. 
 

 
Figure 2 Group outside the Salvation Army Barracks, High Street, Eastleigh, 1894 (Now the home of Eastleigh Museum) 

The exhibition closed earlier than planned due to the Covid-19 lockdown in November 
2020.  
 
 
Hate Crime Awareness Days  - 14th & 15th October  
 
To help promote Hate Crime Awareness Week  
10-17 October 2020.  One Community and Hampshire Constabulary ran two awareness 
days to help reach the community and give advice of the support available.  Eastleigh 
Museum is a third party hate crime reporting centre.   
 
Along with Naomi Stock, a PCSO and a positive action coordinator from Hampshire 
Constabulary facilitated the event.   
 

 
Figure 3 Hate Crime Awareness Days 

8



5 
 

 
 
 
Half Term Trail – 26 October until 31st October 
 
 
A Halloween Half Term museum trail for families was delivered by One Community with 30 
participants.  
 
 
3. Caring for collections, promoting access, providing specialist knowledge & 
advice   
  
3.1 Collections Care 
 
The Community Manager carried out a survey of collections to identify any objects that 
could potentially contain asbestos. This list is being reviewed by the HCT conservation 
team. There were no items identified to be of immediate concern and requiring quarantine.  
 
4.  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  

 
4.1 Community Engagement  
 
One Community  
 
From the Information Centre at Eastleigh Museum, One Community provides information, 
support and signposting to local agencies, to meet the needs of all comers. In addition to 
information about local support agencies, local activities, such as clubs, fetes and all 
manner of events that contribute to a flourishing community life are also promoted.  
 
 

 
Horizon 20:20 

 
 
The Horizon programme has continued to support vulnerable young people in The Bridge 
Education Centre. During the time when face-to-face activity was not possible HCT 
secured funding through Youth Endowment Fund to offer resources and online sessions 
for young people. 20 Creative Boxes shared out by the Bridge Education Centre. 
 
The following workshops took place in the Spring Term.  

- February - 2 Printmaking with artist Sarah Gaiger  
- March  - 5 Animation sessions  

 
64 young people participated in these sessions and 20 people received creative boxes as 
part of the Create and Connect programme.  
 
In August there were continued opportunities to engage with online workshops and 
resources open to young people in Eastleigh through Hampshire Children’s Services.  
  
With felt making sessions with artist Jono Retallick and in November artist led session with 
Thomas Cooke. 30 young people participated in these sessions.  
 

9



6 
 

 
Figure 4 Printmaking workshop 

 
 
 
5.  Marketing and Management 
 
  
5.1 Social Media 
 
HCT Facebook now has over 5000 “likes” and twitter 6000 followers. Events at Eastleigh 
are promoted on both social media sites on an ongoing basis.   
 
5.2 Other Marketing Projects 
 
The Eastleigh venue leaflet continues to be produced and is professionally distributed 
across the region and is at every HCT venue as well as Eastleigh itself.  
 
5.3 Culture on Call 
 
When venues closed an online offer, Culture On Call was developed by HCT and 
launched 3 April. From 3 April until 31 October there were 57,118 page views and 26,969 
sessions. You can view online content at https://www.cultureoncall.com/ including the 
Eastleigh exhibition Life Through The Lens https://www.cultureoncall.com/life-in-eastleigh-
through-the-lens/ and Bursledon Windmill Tree Trail. 
 
 
 
 
 

10

https://www.cultureoncall.com/
https://www.cultureoncall.com/life-in-eastleigh-through-the-lens/
https://www.cultureoncall.com/life-in-eastleigh-through-the-lens/


7 
 

6. Other Projects  
 
Industrious Minds 
 
We are delighted to announce that our successful National Heritage Lottery Funded 
project ‘Industrious Minds’  has commenced with our Project Officer Paola Palma starting 
in her one day a week position at the beginning of November.  
 
The project will commence with an online consultation meeting with partners and 
interested groups from the Eastleigh Borough. We will then take this feedback to adapt our 
project plan in the ligth of the Covid-19 pandemic.   
 
Industrious Minds is an 18-month project working with up to 40 young people to engage 
them with the industrial heritage of Eastleigh. Utilising Hampshire Cultural Trust’s local 
collections, the local studies area at Eastleigh Museum and built heritage of Eastleigh, 
young people will investigate how past industry has shaped present day, and how current 
industry will shape our future. There will also be a focus on the impact of industry on the 
environment in response to Eastleigh Borough Council declaring a climate emergency.  
 
The project will provide young people with a voice, responding to these topics through a 
collaborative exhibition, digital interpretation and artist response which will go on to tour 
around the borough. The outcomes created by young people during Industrious Minds will 
also inform Eastleigh Museum’s new venue and interpretation plan, embedding their 
voices into the future development of the museum. Our main aims are to inspire young 
people to engage with Eastleigh’s heritage and to help inspire pride of place among 
Eastleigh Borough residents.  
 
We hope that the project will include partners Eastleigh Borough Council, One Community, 
The Bridge Education Centre and Energy Youth Club.  
 

 
The Eastleigh Connection, Eastleigh Museum – Options Appraisal 
 
Consultants Oxford Cultural Associates have been commissioned to carry out an options 
appraisal for Eastleigh Museum and began work in October 2020.  
 
They have completed the first phase of their work and will be leading on a community 
consultation process over the coming months .Please see the Update and Community 
Engagement Consultation Plan attached. The consultants will update the JMC at the 
meeting on progress to date, and consult the group on future plans. 
 
The Options Appraisal project has been funded by the South Western Railways Customer 
and Communities Improvement Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



8 
 

7. Future Activity 
 
Upcoming exhibitions for 2020 include an exhibition from local photographer Antony Lowe 
and an internal Hampshire Cultural Trust Exhibition on ‘Early Eastleigh’.  

 

 
Figure 5 Photograph of Bursledon Windmill by Antony Lowe 

 
 

Emma Banks 
November 2020 

 

12



Eastleigh Museum JMC Finance Report

Expenditure Description Actual Q2 20-21 Budget 2020-21

Community Manager 1 day a week, operational oversight, OC partnership and SI development £5,287.00 £10,574.00

Cultural Experience Manager2 days a month, support with exhibitions and collections £2,460.00 £4,920.00

Collections team 1 day a quarter, collections specific support and conservation £350.00 £700.00

Head of Community 1.5 days a month, strategic and team management £2,493.00 £4,986.00

Programming

Exhibitions Materials and resources for exhibition programme £200.00 £200.00

Horizon 20:20 Project working with The Bridge Education Centre in Eastleigh £7,500.00 £15,000.00

Industrious Minds

18-month project working with young people, from the Eastleigh Borough, to engage them 

with the industrial heritage of the town. £0.00 £17,100.00

South Western Railway Options Appraisal project £0.00 £10,000.00

Venue Management

Premises Costs Business rates, cleaning, refuge £991.00 £5,188.00

Central Support

Central fundraising 4 days - focused on support with future plans linked to Options Appraisal £0.00 £809.00

Central marketing Website, social media, digital content development, local press promotion £4,319.77 £8,639.54

Finance, HR and IT Central costs around staff, facilities and finance £5,304.50 £10,609.00

Total £28,905.27 £88,725.54

Income Description Actual Q2 20-21 Budget YTD

HCT/HCC Eastleigh Share of HCC Annual Grant £10,905.27 £23,125.54

Voluntary Income Horizon 20:20, Industrious Minds, Options Appraisal external grants £7,500.00 £42,100.00

Eastleigh earned income % of income raised through retail and shop (managed by One Community) £0.00 £2,500.00

Eastleigh Borough Council Annual grant £10,500.00 £21,000.00

Total £28,905.27 £88,725.54

Additional HCT funding secured during COVID-19

Government business support grant £235,000 £10k for EM

Culture Recovery Fund £480,000

National Heritage Lottery Fund Emergency Fund £41,000

Staff Costs

13

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 Museum 
 

Discussion meeting with JMC 
 
Date: 
 

11th December 2020, 11:30-12:30 
 
Attending: 
 

(JMC) 
(HCT) 
Lucy Shaw, Miki Lentin, Nicola Bird (CAO) 
 
Agenda: 
 

1.  Introductions 
 

2.  Reflections from CAO on work undertaken so far – (please see CAO’s attached update 
 

3.  Community consultation plan 
 

4.  Discussion re Eastleigh Museum – focusing on the following questions: 

 What stories of Eastleigh do you feel are important to focus on? 

 What role do you think a community museum should play? 

 What do you think are the priorities for Eastleigh as a town moving forward? 

 What role do you think culture and the arts should play in Eastleigh and what partnerships 
would you like to see established? 

 What audiences do you think a refreshed museum should focus on? 

 Any other insight or reflections? 
 

5.  Next stages 
 

 
 

15

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

Update and Community Engagement Plan – Eastleigh Museum 
 

Options Appraisal - ‘Creating a Story of Place’  
 

November 2020 
  
1. Introduction 
 

This document is an overview of Work Package 1 (Understanding the task, the collections, the location and town), as part of the Options Appraisal that Cultural Associates 
Oxford (CAO) is developing for Eastleigh Museum, which is part of the Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT). To follow is a summary of the work undertaken so far by CAO, together 
with a Draft Community Engagement Plan for the Museum. 
 
2. Aims 
 

• To engage Eastleigh’s local communities in the reinterpretation and redevelopment of Eastleigh Museum 
• To develop an Options Appraisal and feed into the development of a Design Brief for the redevelopment of Eastleigh Museum for HCT  
• To embed HCT in this process as a means to (re)establish HCT and the museum within Eastleigh borough’s local community 
• To (re)embed the Museum’s role within its local community and with partner organisations, therefore placing the Museum on the map as a venue to visit in Eastleigh, 

and to also highlight contemporary and social issues which link to its local history 
• To aim for social impact through participation and remove barriers to participation with the Museum  
• To encourage effective partnerships across Eastleigh 

 
3. Hampshire Cultural Trust’s Mission 
 

HCT’s mission is to provide great arts, heritage, museums and creative programming, working closely with local and national partners, and placing communities, HCT’s 
collections and their stories at the heart of everything HCT does. 

17



2 
 

4. Findings – Work Package 1 
 

List of organisations CAO has engaged / spoken with so far: 
 
NB – there are still some organisations we are waiting to engage with. 

Name Position Organisation  
Nikola Moore Head of Arts and Culture Eastleigh Borough Council 
Jean Robert-Jones CEO One Community 
Julia Allan Head of Voluntary Sector Support One Community  
Janne Rowehl, Mark Barden, Robin Iles Collections Team HCT 
Amy Whittlesea Cultural Coordinator - ICE  Ashcroft Arts Centre / ICE Project 
Caz Creagh Learning and Participation Manager Eastleigh Borough Council 
Cat Cooke Cultural Coordinator – Horizon 20:20 Horizon 20:20 
Paola Palma Cultural Coordinator – Industrious Minds / Still Curious  Industrious Minds 
   
Teresa Swann (date of meeting TBC) BID Manager Eastleigh Business Improvement District 
Guy Riddoch (date of meeting TBC) Eastleigh Local Area Manager Eastleigh Borough Council  
Debbie Gent (date of meeting TBC) Business Mentor Sorting Office 
Susan Harbottle (date of meeting TBC) Assistant Project Manager Southampton City of Culture Bid 

 

List of local groups and organisations for consultation in Appendix 1 

 
5. Comment and Reflection from research undertaken so far: 
 

Below is a summary of the conversations CAO has had with key stakeholders, which demonstrate the need for a comprehensive community engagement programme to help 
prioritise areas of focus for Eastleigh Museum. 
 

Overall: 
 

• There is a significant amount of civic pride in Eastleigh and a love for the town, the borough and surrounding areas from those who live there, which is very infectious 
• There is a real love and admiration for Eastleigh Museum amongst community organisations. It is seen as a badge of pride for the town. 

18



3 
 

• For a small town, Eastleigh has a unique heritage with a strong and vibrant industrial background – railways, transport (Spitfire), airport, links to port in Southampton, 
Pirelli etc. 

• Eastleigh has lots of elements to its locality / identity – railway links, commuter town, young professionals, young families moving in, proximity to larger cities such as 
Southampton and Portsmouth, local universities and Colleges – i.e. Solent University, Eastleigh College 

• There are opportunities for partnerships and engagement that cover the whole of the borough and not just Eastleigh town centre 
• There exists plenty of willingness to work together, to develop partnerships and enhance dialogue 

 

Eastleigh Borough Council: (Critical stakeholder in the future planning of the museum) 
• Eastleigh Borough Council is ambitious and wants to ensure that culture is strengthened across the borough, not just in the town centre 
• The Culture Team is now well-funded and is now fully-resourced and includes a learning / participation team that was established as part of its new cultural strategy. 

The strategy also seeks to connect arts, culture and employability, developing artists/ arts professionals for the future as well as enabling creative thinking to flourish, 
to develop a dynamic, innovative and proactive workforce. 

• Opportunities to work more closely with local schools and colleges, the Business Improvement District (BID) and Solent LEP, Southampton City of Culture Bid etc. 
• Council wants to create more opportunities especially for younger families moving to the area 
• Nikola Moore (Head of Arts and Culture) could be a lynchpin in the future to help bring disparate groups together 
• There is a focus on young people, but Eastleigh also has a large elderly community which also bring certain opportunities 

 

Community Groups: 
• Eastleigh Museum is in a unique position. It already works closely with established partners such as One Community and Young people’s services / partners (about to 

start the HCT ‘Industrious Minds’ project) 
• Organisations like One Community are excellent at working with volunteers and other local groups / organisations. The current volunteers in the museum all feel very 

close to the museum and want it do to well. 
• One Community see the museum as their front door on the High Street and they are very keen to maintain links to the museum and their shop-window 
• There is a tremendous amount of local knowledge, a willingness to establish partnerships and links across the borough  

 

Audiences: 
• Young people need things to do in Eastleigh – they need space to create – everyone hangs out in the green 
• Good connections exist with Young People services across the borough 
• Elderly community in Eastleigh is very apparent, with a high amount of care homes – opportunities to create outreach with that community 

 

Creative / Culturally activity Groups: 
• Eastleigh has a creative community, hub of makers (Sorting Office), hub for small businesses, maker’s market, film festival, festivals, Mela, theatres – plenty of low-

hanging fruit for the Museum to engage with 

19



4 
 

• Organisations like The Bridge Education Centre, CAMHS and HCT roles that work county-wide (for example the Young People’s coordinator) can help to create 
creative opportunities with other venues across the borough 

 

Opportunities: 
• Eastleigh Museum can take the lead and be a lynchpin for culture in Eastleigh 
• HCT’s Eastleigh collections are unique and can play a role in telling the story of Eastleigh in diverse and interesting ways 
• The redevelopment of the Museum can be a flagship for the community museums and community-centred practice for HCT 
• Eastleigh Museum already serves a function within Eastleigh and this is a strong basis on which to develop its role and displays 
• Eastleigh Borough Council, One Community, local businesses, the creative community and local services are extremely positive about working in partnership and 

collaborating with HCT on the museum’s role, narratives, displays (permanent and temporary) and programming 
• The development of a ‘cultural quarter’ in Eastleigh through the Local Area Manager provides significant opportunities for the Museum  
• There is a readiness to share contacts, resources and ensure the local groups and community in Eastleigh benefit from the redevelopment by joined-up thinking 
• Good things are happening through Eastleigh Library, the Swan Centre etc. which can be factored into future planning 

 

Redevelopment: 
• Take a community-led approach and involve the people of Eastleigh from across the borough through each stage of the planning, design, redisplay and programming 

through open consultation in the actual building 
• Strategically approach the consultation and redevelopment with social impact through participation – this would provide benefits for people and groups in Eastleigh 

as well as HCT  
• Listen to local residents, organisations and groups, and develop the museum’s role as well as the stories it tells and the objects it displays 
• Bring in HCT collections to give the depth of history and place, whilst reflecting on contemporary identity and narratives to help shape opportunities for the future  
• Develop a Cultural Board to find the balance of the strategic priorities of HCT with local concern’s / priorities and discover where these align 
• Work in partnership with Eastleigh Borough Council and especially with its creative learning and participation team 
• Showcase the unique and multi-faceted HCT collections that are relevant to Eastleigh and the surrounding areas 
• Approach contemporary issues that meet Eastleigh Borough Council’s local priorities, such as job creation, more services for young families, and bring in HCT’s 

collections to give the depth of history and place whilst reflecting on opportunities for the future  
 

Challenges: 
• There isn’t a clear understanding of the relationship between HCT, the museum and organisations like One Community as well as other community groups  
• Projects across Eastleigh and the borough are still very siloed and discrete. There is a lack of partnership across the borough. 
• Resource is insufficient across culture in the borough, especially on creative and community projects 
• What is the remit of One Community? What contract exists? What governance is in place? Who really manages the relationship? 
• Local people aren’t always aware of what’s happening in Eastleigh – seem to know more about Portsmouth and Southampton 

20



5 
 

• Is there sufficient resource within the HCT to drive forward a community engagement plan / initiative for Eastleigh Museum in the next few years and what 
investment will be made to help achieve HCT’s objectives? 

 
 
6. Eastleigh Stakeholder Engagement Map 
 

This draft Eastleigh Museum Stakeholder 
Engagement map outlines where key 
stakeholders have been mapped by levels of 
influence and interest in the museum.  
 
The map shows where stakeholders currently 
sit, but the aim would be to shift some of 
them towards higher levels of influence and 
interest.  
 
This could be done by the development of a 
stakeholder engagement plan, which could 
be developed as a future piece of work. It will 
be critical to help maintain relationships, 
grow and develop partnerships and improve 
the reputation of HCT and the museum.  
 
Furthermore, it is vital that someone has the 
responsibility for managing the relationships 
with the various stakeholders to ensure that 
they are continually being managed and kept 
informed during and after this programme of 
work. 
 
 
 

21



6 
 

7. Community Engagement Plan 
 

The community engagement plan looks at the steps up to March 2021 which focus on engaging, listening, feeding back and working with organisations and groups that 
lives and work in Eastleigh. It will aim to consult borough wide through targeted and open consultations.  
 

CAO Activity Approach  Outcomes  

Community consultation 
- Stories of Eastleigh 
- Role of community museum 
- Local concerns  
- Begin the HCT / Community partnership 

approach 
 
We recommend 1 x HCT staff member to be part 
of the consultations  

  

• Hold consultation with current Eastleigh 
Museum Volunteers (in partnership with One 
Community) 

• face to face in Museum? 
• online with group in the Museum 

• Highlight: 
- historical narratives 

(Transport / Railway / Pirelli / Spitfire / WW1 activities / 
prominent figures) 

- current areas of interest 
(Health & Wellbeing / environmental / reducing isolation / 
social cohesion / young people’s provision) 

- local activities of interest (Unwrapped festival / exhibitions 
/ film festival) 

 
• Identify local advocates / potential members of museum story 

group 
 
• Start building a relationship between HCT and Eastleigh 

communities / group  
 
• Develop HCT / One Community collaboration 
 
 

• Co-planned consultations with Paola / The 
Bridge / Industrious Minds 

• Consult with partner organisation / any 
younger people that are engaging with 
Industrious Minds 

• Open calls for interested people who live 
across the Borough (2 x online consultations) 
- Partnership with Echo / Hampshire 

Chronicle and Eastleigh News 
- One Community Newsletter 
- Social media platforms – Facebook 

groups / Instagram / twitter 
o (also use HCT / One Community 

social media platforms) 
 
• Engage with targeted groups 
(approach Eastleigh groups and organisations 
identified in appendix 1) 

Support the development of Eastleigh Community 
Arts, Culture and Heritage Board  
 

• Identify / approach local partners 
(EG - Eastleigh Borough Council / One Community 
/ Industrious Minds / Eastleigh Creatives / LEP) 
 

• Eastleigh stakeholders to come together to think about the 
arts, heritage, creative activities together (meet quarterly) 

• Support development of ‘Terms of Reference’ 
• Identify common areas of activity / prioritisation   
• Identify key activities over the short / mid term 
• Feed into Design Brief 

22



7 
 

Development of Museum story group 

• Recruit through consultation in Dec 
• Meet in December, January, February 
• Present findings of CAO consultation 
• Agree guiding principles / ToF / themes 
• 3 meetings 
• In-depth discussions with HCT / Architect 

team 

• Start processing of focusing  
– Narratives 
– Role of museum 
– Links with local activities / groups 

• New approaches in redevelopment of the museum 
(community-centred) 

• Feed into Design Brief 

Consultation exhibitions / open meetings / 
feedback opportunities  
 
 

• Invite all groups / people who took part in 
consultation to hear about the consultation’s 
findings  

• Presentation of main themes / narratives / 
roles identified through consultation 

• Online presentation / in Eastleigh Museum / 
Swan Centre / possibly community centres  

• Continual consultation and partnership with local people 
• Feedback on main themes 
 

 
 
8. Community consultations – Outputs 
 
Series of Round tables and 1:1 consultations:  

• Topics of local history that are important and relevant to local people 
• Contemporary issues that resonate locally 
• Opportunities to link with local activities  
• Local groups (re)link with HCT and recognise community-led practice 
• Identify local advocates and key members of Eastleigh’s community 
• Collaborate with Industrious Minds project - include younger people 

 
Feedback to groups:  

• Feedback on common themes re: narratives / social role and concerns of local groups 
• Exhibitions (online and face to face)  
• Highlight initial themes to take forward 
• Develop and reinforce the HCT community-led and local partnerships 

 
Development of Eastleigh Community Arts, Culture and Heritage Board (ECACHB): 

• HCT leading and being recognised as an important local partner re: Arts & Culture in Eastleigh 
• HCT developing a focused forum of partners across Eastleigh Borough to come together to focus on the Arts, Culture and Heritage 

23



8 
 

 
Development of Museum Story Group: 

• A diverse and representative group of local people to shape the redevelopment options 
• A relationship with local people to the development of the community role of the museum 
• Identify themes to develop 
• Feed into the Design Brief and highlight narratives and role of Eastleigh community museum 
• Provide a link with HCT & local communities 
• Advocacy and networks for the museum’s redevelopment 

 
 
9. Schedule for Community Engagement Plan 
 

November December January February March April May 
Community consultation     

Social media 
comms 

Consult online meetings X 6     

Newspaper 
comms 

One comm / 
Industrious Minds 
/ open meetings 

Open meetings / 
targeted groups 
 

    

 Online survey Online survey     
  Community consultation feedback (f/b)    
   f/b Exhibition  f/b Exhibition     
   f/b re design brief     
 Eastleigh Museum Story Group   
 Identify story 

group members 
Recruitment story 
group members /  
ToF 

Museum story group 
key themes 

Museum story feedback 
/ HCT / One community 
/ public 

Identify how story 
group continues 

  

  Eastleigh Community Arts, Culture and Heritage Board (ECACHB)   
  Identify partners / 

ToF 
ECACHB meeting Identify common 

activities / themes 
(short / long term) 

  ECACHB meeting 

  Design brief 
development 

CAO design brief & options appraisal 
development 

CAO design brief 
presentation 

  

 
 

24



9 
 

Appendix 1 
 
Eastleigh Community Groups / Organisations  

Organisations 
 

 Community Centres 

Age Concern Eastleigh Eastleigh CAMHS Velmore Community Centre 
Asian Welfare and Cultural Association Youth Offending Team Hexagon Centre 
Bishopstoke History Society Eastleigh Young Carers Project Wells Place 
Chrysalis Energy Youth Centre (Groundwork) Horton Heath Community Centre 
Churches Together in Eastleigh (Hope Eastleigh) The Bridge (Groundwork)  
Disabled Peoples Voice - Hampshire The Hub  
Eastleigh & District Disability Forum Eastleigh Youth & Community Trust -The Pavilion on 

the Park  
Theatres 

Eastleigh & District Local History Society Youth Strike for Climate, Eastleigh The Point  
Eastleigh BID Fledge Youth Support Chandler’s Forde Chameleon Theatre Company 
Eastleigh Borough & Romsey MENCAP Society Eastleigh College  
Eastleigh Borough Twinning Association Eastleigh Aid Eastleigh Drama League 
Eastleigh District Scouts Eastleigh Good Neighbours (EGN)  
Eastleigh District U3A Eastleigh Gurkha Nepalese Association (EGNA) Eastleigh Creatives 
Eastleigh District Girl Guides Eastleigh Railway Preservation Society Ltd (ERPS) Groundwork South - Energy Youth Centre 
Eastleigh Football Club Eastleigh Good Neighbours (EGN) Hampshire County Federation of WI's 
  Mid Hants Railway (The Watercress Line) 

 

Appendix 2 

Existing activity in Eastleigh: 

The Point 

Eastleigh Creatives 

Unwrapped festival 

Film festival 

Mela 

 

25



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Curators's Report
	6 Curator's Finance Report
	7 Options Appraisal Update
	CAO - Eastleigh Update and Community Engagement Consultation Plan


